
RICHLAND TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 1 

 2 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 8, 2008 3 

 4 

  5 
A meeting was held by the Richland Township Planning Commission on 6 

Wednesday, October 8, 2008, at the Richland Township Hall beginning at 7:00 p.m. 7 
 8 

Members present: Nick Westra, Chairman 9 
   Wanda Hinklin, Secretary 10 
   Walter Calhoun 11 
   Greg Jensen 12 

John McCann 13 
David Wendzel 14 
 15 

  Member Absent: Trudy Luedecking 16 
 17 

Also present were Township Attorney Kenneth Sparks and five other interested 18 
persons. 19 
 20 

CALL TO ORDER AND REVIEW OF MINUTES 21 
 22 

The Chairman called the meeting to order and indicated that the first matter to come 23 
before the Planning Commission would be a review of the proposed minutes of the 24 
September 10, 2008,  Planning Commission meeting.  Upon motion of Commissioner 25 
Jensen, seconded by Commissioner Hinklin, the Planning Commission voted unanimously 26 
to approve the minutes as prepared. 27 

 28 

CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC HEARING – SCOTT SWEEZIE 29 
 30 
 The next matter to come before the Planning Commission was the continuation of a 31 
public hearing on the application of Scott Sweezie of 10875 M-43 in Richland Township for 32 
a special exception use permit to allow the construction of a proposed residential 33 
accessory building upon his aforementioned residence in the area between his house and 34 
the abutting road.  At the Chairman’s request, the Township Attorney reviewed the status 35 
of this matter.  He noted that at the last Planning Commission meeting, the Planning 36 
Commission had deferred further consideration of this matter in order to give Mr. Sweezie 37 
the opportunity to submit more detailed plans and information regarding his revised 38 
request.   39 
 40 
 The Chairman then reviewed the protocol that would be followed in conducting the 41 
further public hearing at this evening’s meeting.  He then invited comment from the public. 42 
 43 
 Ms. Laurel Luehrig of 10863 M-43 in Richland Township then addressed the 44 
Planning Commission.  Ms. Luehrig reviewed comments contained in a written 45 
memorandum from her and her husband regarding the revised plan submitted by Mr. 46 



 2 

Sweezie, a copy of which memorandum is on file as part of the record of this meeting.  Ms. 1 
Luehrig indicated that while she and her husband opposed Mr. Sweezie’s request, they 2 
would ask that if the Planning Commission nonetheless granted the request, that it impose 3 
several conditions.  She indicated that the Commission should require that the proposed 4 
accessory building be moved 80 feet to the east so as to be further from her residence.  5 
She indicated that the Planning Commission should require evergreen screening be 6 
established between the building and her property.  She indicated that the Planning 7 
Commission should require that the existing large red storage building on Mr. Sweezie’s 8 
property be removed.  She indicated that Mr. Sweezie should also be required to indicate 9 
the specific use for the proposed building.  She indicated that the building looks like a 10 
warehouse and she would not want to have the building used for business purposes. 11 
 12 
 Ms. Gretchen Thomas of 10845 M-43 in Richland Township then addressed the 13 
Planning Commission.  She indicated that she agreed with Ms. Luehrig’s comments.  She 14 
indicated that she still strongly objects to Mr. Sweezie’s revised proposal.  She then 15 
reviewed the comments contained in her written memorandum to the Planning Commission 16 
dated October 7, 2008, a copy of which is on file as part of the record of this meeting.  She 17 
indicated that she would ask that the Planning Commission deny Mr. Sweezie’s request. 18 
 19 
 Mr. Scott Sweezie then addressed the Planning Commission.  He indicated that the 20 
proposed accessory building would have a clay color that would be complementary to the 21 
color of the portion of his house that would be remodeled.  He indicated that the gables of 22 
the proposed building would be accented in a similarly complementary color.  He noted that 23 
his revised proposed building reduced the size of the building from 1,344 square feet to 24 
1,152 square feet.  He indicated that the original design had included a workshop area, but 25 
that the new design had eliminated the workshop area and would be for storage purposes 26 
only.  He reviewed comments contained in his written submission to the Planning 27 
Commission, a copy of which is on file as part of the record of this meeting.  He indicated 28 
that the proposed building was intended to accommodate tandem parking for two boats or 29 
other vehicles.  He indicated that he has two boats and other vehicles that he wished to 30 
store in the building.  He indicated that he does not conduct an at-home business and that 31 
the proposed building would not be used for any commercial purpose.  He indicated that he 32 
would probably have a workbench in the proposed building.  He indicated that with respect 33 
to the comments in Ms. Luehrig’s memorandum regarding “comparable” accessory 34 
buildings in the area, a number of those buildings may have been “grandfathered” by 35 
having been constructed before the current Township accessory building regulations 36 
adopted in 2000, but that does not change the fact that his request is consistent with other 37 
accessory buildings in the area.  He indicated that a special exception use permit had been 38 
granted for the large accessory building on the property across the road from his property.  39 
He indicated that the proposed building would be of a pole-type construction, but would 40 
have asphalt shingles.  He indicated that his remodeled house will have a greater height 41 
than the proposed accessory building.  He then reviewed his diagram showing the 42 
approximate location of the buildings on the neighboring properties.  He also showed to the 43 
Commission aerial photographs of his property and the surrounding area.  He indicated 44 
that the portion of the Luehrig property in the vicinity of the proposed location of his 45 



 3 

accessory building is where the Luehrigs have a garage and a power generator.  He 1 
indicated that this area is used as the utility portion of the Luehrig property. 2 
 3 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that his revised proposal did call for the accessory building to 4 
be slightly closer to his house than shown in the original proposal.  He indicated that this 5 
shift was made so as to avoid the need to have additional grading on his property.  He 6 
indicated that he was already proposing a location that would require $2,950 of extra 7 
concrete work in order to keep a setback of three times greater than the Township Zoning 8 
Ordinance setback requirement with respect to the property line abutting the Luehrig 9 
property. 10 
 11 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that the first floor living area of his house was 1,851 square 12 
feet.  He indicated that his existing attached garage had an area of 598 square feet.  He 13 
indicated that under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance, he could have an additional 14 
storage building with an area of 1,253 square feet without needing special exception use 15 
permit approval for a building of that size.  He indicated that he would be willing to remove 16 
the existing red storage building from his property within twelve months.  He indicated that 17 
he wanted to keep and use the red storage building while the proposed new accessory 18 
building was being constructed.  19 
 20 
 No further public comment was offered. 21 
 22 
 Commissioner Hinklin noted that the Planning Commission had received the two 23 
written memoranda from Mr. and Ms. Luehrig and Ms. Thomas.   24 
 25 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that he had also prepared an 11 minute video of his property 26 
if any Planning Commission member had not had the opportunity to view his property. 27 
 28 
 In response to a question from Ms. Luehrig, Planning Commission members 29 
indicated that they had viewed the Sweezie property, but that none of the Planning 30 
Commission members had gone onto Ms. Luehrig’s property.  Ms. Luehrig indicated that 31 
she believed it would have been desirable if Planning Commission members had viewed 32 
Mr. Sweezie’s property from her property, so as to get a better idea of the perspective from 33 
her property.  She indicated that the portion of her land abutting the vicinity of the proposed 34 
accessory building was not an utility yard area.  She indicated that the proposed accessory 35 
building should be moved as close to the road as feasible and there should be evergreen 36 
screening.   37 
 38 
 Ms. Thomas indicated that the proposed building will be visible from her residence 39 
regardless of where Mr. Sweezie locates it.  She requested that there be a condition 40 
requiring the planting of evergreen screening.   41 
 42 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that if the proposed accessory building was moved closer to 43 
M-43 as requested by Ms. Luehrig, there would be a tremendous amount of excavation 44 
because of the slope of the property.  He indicated that this would be cost prohibitive and 45 



 4 

would not make sense.  He indicated that he would be willing to plant some small pine tree 1 
saplings, although he considered pine trees a nuisance. 2 
 3 
 There was no further public comment.  The Planning Commission then proceeded 4 
with Commission deliberation. 5 
 6 
 Commissioner Jensen noted that the proposed building was 14 feet high at the 7 
eaves.  He inquired as to why Mr. Sweezie wanted such a high building.  Mr. Sweezie 8 
indicated that he might want to put a camper in the building some day.  Mr. Sweezie 9 
indicated that the wall at the back corner of the building would be 8 feet high and that if he 10 
shortened the building, the corner wall would only be 6 feet high.  He indicated that he 11 
wanted a 13 foot rollup door for future use of the building.  In response to a question from 12 
Commissioner Jensen, Ms. Luehrig and Ms. Thomas indicated that they can see the 13 
existing red storage building from their property.  Ms. Thomas indicated that this building is 14 
about 200 square feet in size and that almost everyone has a building of that size.  Mr. 15 
Sweezie indicated that the existing red storage building is 12 feet by 22 feet. 16 
 17 
 Commissioner Jensen inquired as to what measures Mr. Sweezie would take to 18 
control stormwater runoff onto the Luehrig property.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that the 19 
proposed building would have eave troughs.  In response to a question from Mr. Jensen, 20 
Mr. Sweezie indicated that he could also establish some berming along the southern 21 
portion of the property to prevent stormwater runoff onto the Luehrig property.  Mr. Sweezie 22 
indicated that the runoff that Ms. Luehrig noted in her written memo and comments was 23 
from a 100 year rain.  He indicated that the Drain Commissioner has inspected his site and 24 
found it acceptable.  He indicated that the Drain Commissioner will also be inspecting it 25 
again. 26 
 27 
 Commissioner Hinklin noted that the proposed building does not exceed the size 28 
limitations in the Zoning Ordinance.  She indicated that she believed the issue is the 29 
location of the building, not its size or its height.   30 
 31 
 In response to a question from Commissioner Wendzel, the Township Attorney 32 
reviewed the standards in the Zoning Ordinance governing the granting of the requested 33 
special exception use permit approval.  He noted that one of the standards is that the 34 
proposed accessory building not have a material adverse impact upon the owner and 35 
occupants of surrounding properties.  He noted that this standard also provided that the 36 
Planning Commission shall have authority to impose reasonable conditions, including 37 
reduction in size, to assure compliance with this standard.  The Township Attorney then 38 
briefly discussed the concept of “material adverse impact”. 39 
 40 
 The Chairman noted that there had been some requests for greater screening and 41 
that such screening be of a type that would provide year-round, as opposed to seasonal 42 
screening.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that he would be willing to plant one row of white pines, 43 
but would not be willing to plant a double row of white pines.  He indicated that the white 44 
pines would be smaller.  Commissioner Jensen inquired as to whether Mr. Sweezie would 45 



 5 

be willing to plant an arborvitae hedge.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that he has planted 1 
arborvitae on his property before and it has always died.  Ms. Terrie Dawson indicated that 2 
she has arborvitae on her property and that it has done well.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that he 3 
would be willing to put in an arborvitae hedge. 4 
 5 
 Commissioner Calhoun indicated that he believed it would be desirable to establish 6 
a 2 foot high berm between the proposed building and the Luehrig properties so as to 7 
prevent stormwater runoff.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that he would be willing to establish such 8 
a berm.  9 
 10 
 Commissioner Wendzel indicated that he would want to know the number of 11 
arborvitae plantings, the height, and when they would be proposed to be constructed. 12 
 13 
 Commissioner McCann indicated that if the arborvitae were spaced 3 feet or 4 feet 14 
apart, this would result in a solid line of screening.  He indicated that he believed it might 15 
be more desirable to just have plantings that would break up the view but that would not 16 
constitute a solid screen. 17 
 18 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that he would not want to be stuck with being limited to 19 
planting arborvitae screening.   20 
 21 
 Commissioner Hinklin indicated that she believed the screening should just break up 22 
the view of the building, but not constitute a massive wall.   23 
 24 
 Commissioner McCann indicated that he believed it would be preferable for some 25 
evergreen trees to be interspersed rather than have a solid hedge.   26 
 27 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that he would be willing to put in six blue spruce.  He 28 
indicated that he would not want to be locked in at this time as to the specific nature of the 29 
screening.   30 
 31 
 Commissioner Jensen expressed concern that the proposed 14 foot height at the 32 
eave of the building was excessive for the area.  He indicated that he believed it should be 33 
lowered to a 10 foot height.   34 
 35 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that he needed a 13 foot overhead door in order to be able to 36 
park a recreational vehicle in the proposed building.  He indicated that the proposed height 37 
of his building was within the limits allowed under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance.  38 
Commissioner Jensen indicated that he would encourage Mr. Sweezie to reconsider the 39 
height of the building.   40 
 41 
 The Township Attorney indicated that it would be possible for the Planning 42 
Commission to grant special exception use permit approval for the proposed accessory 43 
building, but making such approval conditional upon Mr. Sweezie preparing a detailed 44 
landscaping plan with respect to the screening for the proposed building and such a plan 45 



 6 

being subject to subsequent Planning Commission review and approval.  Mr. Sweezie 1 
indicated that he would be willing to prepare such a detailed landscaping plan and submit it 2 
to the Planning Commission at a subsequent meeting for its approval.   3 
 4 
 The Chairman inquired as to whether the Planning Commission could designate one 5 
of its members to initially review the landscaping plan so as to permit Mr. Sweezie to 6 
establish landscaping on his property prior to the next Planning Commission meeting.  The 7 
Township Attorney indicated that this would be possible.  In response to a further question, 8 
he indicated that the Planning Commission could make such initial review by the Planning 9 
Commission member subject to possible further revision upon review by the full Planning 10 
Commission. 11 
 12 
 In response to a request by Commissioner Wendzel, the Township Attorney again 13 
reviewed the standard in the Zoning Ordinance requiring that a proposed accessory 14 
building not have a material adverse impact upon the owner and occupants of surrounding 15 
properties.  Ms. Gretchen Thomas read the definition of “material” contained in Black’s Law 16 
Dictionary. 17 
 18 
 The Chairman indicated that he believed the Commission should require that the 19 
existing red storage building be removed within 12 months.  He indicated that he believed 20 
the Commission should also impose conditions regarding screening, berming and 21 
landscaping so as to prevent stormwater runoff onto the adjoining property and so as to 22 
block the neighbors’ view of the building.  He indicated that he believed Mr. Sweezie should 23 
be able to construct an accessory building of the height allowed in the Zoning Ordinance.  24 
He indicated that this situation was somewhat unique in that the property has two front 25 
yards since it is lakefront property.  He indicated that if the property was not a lakefront 26 
property, this matter would not be coming before the Planning Commission for approval. 27 
 28 
 After brief further discussion, Commissioner Calhoun moved that the Planning 29 
Commission grant special exception use permit approval for the proposed accessory 30 
building as set forth in Mr. Sweezie’s revised written submission, subject to the following 31 
conditions: 32 
 33 

1. That Mr. Sweezie prepare a site plan showing proposed landscaping 34 
and screening for the proposed building and that this landscaping 35 
plan be submitted to Commissioner Hinklin by October 13, 2008.  36 
Commissioner Hinklin and Commissioner Calhoun will then review 37 
this landscaping plan and tentatively approve or disapprove it, subject 38 
to possible modification when the plan is reviewed by the Planning 39 
Commission at its next regular meeting.  The landscaping plan shall 40 
including a berm that is not less than 2 feet high and running along 41 
the full 48 foot length of the southern side of the building.  The 42 
landscaping plan shall also show evergreen trees, with a minimum 4 43 
foot height, planted upon the berm for the full 48 foot length of the 44 
building. 45 



 7 

 1 
2. That the berm and trees shown on the approved site plan shall be 2 

planted on the property by November 30, 2008.  The plantings on the 3 
landscape plan shall thereafter be maintained in conformance with 4 
the plan and any vegetation that dies be replaced in conformance with 5 
the plan.   6 

 7 
3. That the existing red storage building on the subject property be 8 

removed from the subject property within 12 months from the date of 9 
issuance of the building permit for the proposed accessory building. 10 

 11 
 The Township Attorney indicated that Mr. Sweezie should be aware that under the 12 
terms of the Planning Commission’s motion, the landscaping plan approved by 13 
Commissioners Calhoun and Hinklin would be subject to further review and possible 14 
revision by the full Planning Commission at its next meeting.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that he 15 
was willing to accept that risk.   16 
 17 
 Commissioner Jensen seconded the motion.   18 
 19 
 By way of reasons in support of his motion, Commissioner Calhoun indicated that 20 
the proposed accessory building, with the conditions attached by his motion, satisfied the 21 
standards in the Zoning Ordinance for special exception use permit approval.   He noted 22 
that the size of the proposed accessory building is within the scope of what is permitted 23 
under the Zoning Ordinance.  He indicated that with the additional screening that is being 24 
required, he did not believe the proposed building would have a material adverse impact 25 
upon surrounding properties.  26 
 27 
 A vote was then held on the motion and the motion passed by a vote of 5 to 1, with 28 
Commissioner Wendzel voting in the negative. 29 
 30 

DISCUSSION OF DRAFT ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS 31 

 32 
 The Chairman indicated that due to the lateness of the hour, discussion of proposed 33 
zoning text amendments pertaining to mini-storage warehouse facilities, signage and wind 34 
energy conversion systems would be deferred until the next Planning Commission meeting. 35 
Other Commissioners expressed agreement with this. 36 
 37 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 38 
 39 
 There were no citizen comments. 40 
 41 

OTHER BUSINESS 42 
 43 



 8 

 Commissioner Hinklin indicated that the Township had updated pages for the 1 
Township Zoning Ordinance.  She indicated that the Township administration would be 2 
happy to assist Commissioners in updating their copies of the Zoning Ordinance. 3 
 4 
 Commissioner Hinklin reported that the Township Board had at its last meeting 5 
adopted an ordinance confirming the establishment of the Planning Commission under the 6 
new Planning Enabling Act and exempting the Planning Commission from the requirement 7 
of preparing an annual capital improvements plan. 8 
 9 
 Commissioner Hinklin indicated that at the next Township Board meeting on 10 
November 18, 2008, there would be a swearing in ceremony for new Township Board 11 
members.  She indicated that any Planning Commission members who wished to do so 12 
would be welcome to attend that meeting. 13 
 14 
 There being no further matters to come before the Planning Commission, 15 
Commissioner McCann moved that the meeting be adjourned.  Commissioner Jensen 16 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 

                                                                21 
       Wanda Hinklin, Secretary 22 

Richland Township Planning Commission 23 


